
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24, 2020 
 

6:30 P.M. – CITY HALL 101 GREEN STREET  
  

ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 
 

20C‐0062. 
 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

20C‐0063. Roll Call 

20C‐0064. Establishment of Quorum 
20C‐0065. Pledge of Allegiance 
20C‐0066. Reports of Standing Committees 
20C‐0067. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None.  
 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

20C‐0068. 
 

Discussion and Possible Action on an Application by Casey’s General Store, DBA 
Casey’s General Store Galena #3451. 10889 W. Red Gates Road, for a Corporation 
Manager’s Liquor License for Sheila M. Haas  

3‐5  

 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20‐04 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0069. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of February 10, 2020 

6‐9  

 
20C‐0070. 

 
Approval of a Request by the Galena‐Jo Daviess Historical Society for the Third 
Annual Heroes for History Stair Challenge, September 12, 2020 

10‐11  

 
20C‐0071. 

 
Approval of Janitorial Contracts with Mary Halstead for City Hall, City Hall 
Restrooms, Rec Park, Grant Park, and Market House Restroom for the Period 
May 1, 2020 through April 30, 2021    

12  

Page 1 of 39



Page 2 of 2 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0072. 

 
Approval of Janitorial Contracts with White Construction, Inc. for Turner Hall and 
the Public Works Building for the Period May 1, 2020 through April 30, 2021    

12 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation Commission  Thurs. March 5  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. March 11  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council    Mon. March 9  6:30 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

City Council (Budget Meeting)  Mon. April 6  5:00 P.M.  City Hall, 101 Green Street 

 

 
Please view the full City of Galena Calendar at www.cityofgalena.org  

Posted: Thursday, February 20, 2020 at 4:00 p.m.    Posted By: 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0038. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 120 “Motorized Vehicles for 
Hire” of the Galena Code of Ordinances to Establish Licensing Requirements for 
Transportation Network Companies (Ride Sharing Companies) 

  
13‐24 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0073. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on Zoning Calendar No. 20A‐01, a Request by the 
City of Galena for a Text Amendment to Establish a 1,500 Feet Minimum 
Separation Between Cannabis Businesses 

 
25‐30  

 
20C‐0074. 

 
First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Article 0, Section 154.015, of the Galena 
Zoning Ordinance to Establish a 1,500 Feet Minimum Separation Between 
Cannabis Businesses 

 
31 

 
20C‐0075. 

 
Warrants 

 
32‐39 

20C‐0076. Alderpersons’ Comments    
20C‐0077. City Administrator’s Report    
20C‐0078. Mayor’s Report   
20C‐0079. Adjournment   

Page 2 of 39



Page 3 of 39



Page 4 of 39



Page 5 of 39



Regular Board Meeting  10 February 2020 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 10 FEBRUARY 2020 
 

20C-0045 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 10 February 2020.  
 
20C-0046 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, 
Westemeier, Renner 
 
20C-0047 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
20C-0048 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
20C-0049 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
20C-0050 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20-03 
 
20C-0051 – APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
JANUARY 27, 2019 
 
20C-0052 – ACCEPTANCE OF DECEMBER 2019 FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
20C-0053 – APPROVAL OF PRE-SEASON POOL PROJECTS FOR 2020 SEASON 
 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve Consent Agenda, CA20-03.    
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
     

The motion carried.  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
20C-0038 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 120 “MOTORIZED 
VEHICLES FOR HIRE” OF THE GALENA CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ESTABLISH 
LICENSING REQUIREMENTS FOR TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES (RIDE 
SHARING COMPANIES) 

 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer, to table item 20C-0038 to the next meeting.    
 

Page 6 of 39



Regular Board Meeting  10 February 2020 
 

Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
     

The motion carried.  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
20C-0054 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 111 “ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO INCREASE THE NUMBER OF 
AVAILABLE CLASS A LIQUOR LICENSES FROM NINE TO TEN 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Bernstein, to approve the first reading of an ordinance 
amending Chapter 111 “Alcoholic Beverages” of the Code of Ordinances to increase the number 
of available Class A liquor license from nine to ten and waive the second reading, 20C-0054.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
20C-0055 – FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUE OF NOT TO EXCEED $6,500,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
(SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REFUNDING CERTAIN OUTSTANDING BONDS OF THE CITY, PLEDGING CERTAIN 
REVENUES TO THE PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS, PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION OF 
TAXES TO PAY THE SAME AND AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SAID BONDS TO THE 
PURCHASER THEREOF 
 
Motion:  Hahn moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve the first reading of an ordinance 
authorizing and providing for the issue of not to exceed $6,500,000 General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds (Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2020, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding bonds of the City, pledging certain revenues to the payment of said bonds, providing 
for the imposition of taxes to pay the same and authorizing the sale of said bonds to the 
purchaser thereof and waive the second reading, 20C-0055.     
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
   
  The motion carried. 
 
20C-0056 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON ARCHERY DEER HUNTING 
PROGRAM FOR 2020-21 
 
Motion:  Allendorf moved, seconded by Hahn, to approve the Archery Deer Hunting Program for 
2020-21 with the recommendations by city staff, 20C-0056.   
 
Discussion:  Allendorf was unsure of capping the number of hunters at 25.  He recommended 
being flexible on that.  He feels if a new property comes in and they wish to have someone 
specific hunt that area, they should be allowed.  Allendorf was in favor of coordinating as much as 

Page 7 of 39



Regular Board Meeting  10 February 2020 
 

we can to allow for as many hunters as we can.  Allendorf would encourage the city to work with 
hunters to expand the scope of the existing sites.   
 
Bernstein recommended adding an area along the Spring Street corridor.  Mayor Renner noted 
that is a tough area.  We had one area behind Turney House which was later withdrawn by the 
landowner.  He recommended getting some outlying areas.   
 
Council discussed the possibility of increasing the number of hunters to 30.  No final decision was 
made.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried. 
 
 
20C-0057 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by McCoy, to approve the Warrants as presented with the 
addition of a Warrant to WEX Bank in the amount of $2,638.34, 20C-0057.     
 
Discussion:  None.  
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
 
20C-0058 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Thank you – Westemeier thanked the Galena Police Department for getting more involved with 
the schools.   
 
Otto’s Place – Allendorf announced Otto’s place had a great dinner Friday night.  They partnered 
with Brazen Kitchen out of Dubuque.  There were a lot of out of town people as well as locals.  It 
brought people in on a winter weekend.   
 
20C-0059 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
  
No report.   
 
20C-0060 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Thank you to everyone! 
 
20C-0061 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Kieffer to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
            
  The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 

Page 8 of 39



Regular Board Meeting  10 February 2020 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 9 of 39



Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society & Museum, 211 S. Bench St., Galena, Illinois  61036 

                                     Phone 815-777-9129        Fax 815-777-9131            

                    www.galenahistorymuseum.org       info@galenahistorymuseum.org 

Nancy Breed 

   Executive Director 

 
 

Board of Directors 

   

Christine Harris 

President 

 

Bonnielynn Kreiser 

Vice President 

 

 Kris Chapman 

 Secretary  

 

Bryon Taylor 

Treasurer 

 

Mike Blaum 

 

Bill Butts 

 

Steve Coates 

 

Dawn Freese 

 

Kathleen Morgan 

 

Cory Ritterbusch 

 

Frances Rivoire 

 

MEMO:      February 18, 2020 
 
 

TO:         The Honorable Mayor Renner and the City of Galena Councilpersons 
 
 

 
 
FROM: 
 

 Doug Frank, Event Co-Chair          Denise Spielman, Event Co-Chair 
    Director of Marketing           Retail Manager 

 

 
RE:         “Heroes for History” Event Authorization: Sat., Sept. 12, 2020 
 
The Galena-Jo Daviess County Historical Society has started planning for the  
third annual Heroes for History Stair Challenge, scheduled for Saturday, Sept. 12, 
2020. Our first stop in the planning process is to, once again, extend our thanks to 
the City for its support with previous years’ successful Stair Challenge events. We 
come to you today to seek your consent to move ahead with plans for the 2020   
version.  
 
Our goals are to increase the number of overall participants while attracting more 
first responders from around the Midwest. Our event committee respectfully      
requests the City’s approval for the following items: 
 
1) Permission to use the 100 block of Green Street, between the Post Office and 

City Hall, and City Hall parking lot, as the pre-run and post-run staging area, 
the same as last year: 6 a.m. to noon.  

 
2) The course will be the same as last year. The start would be at the Green Street 

stairs on Bench Street; go north on Prospect all the way to Hill Street 
(bypassing the Washington Street stairs); east on Hill down to Bench; then 
south on Bench back to the Green Street stairs. Participants will run 7 laps or 
walk 1 lap. We once again ask that the city agree to close Bench and Prospect 
streets, and the south side of Hill Street, to traffic from 6 a.m. to noon. At least 
half of Bench and Prospect streets will be reopened after the runners are off the 
course. The streets will be opened full to traffic as soon as volunteers can  
remove barriers and cones from the pavement. 
 

                         (OVER) 

Page 10 of 39



Heroes for History/City of Galena Request 

Page Two 

 

As you know, the past four years of Heroes for History saw no complaints or   

issues. And, we were able to work around a wedding at St. Michael’s Catholic 

Church during a previous year’s race. We anticipate taking the same precautionary 

and communications steps as previous years.  

 

Thank you for your consideration. We are available to respond to any questions 

you may have about the event, now and in the future. 

Page 11 of 39



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    February 20, 2020 

RE:    Janitorial Services Contract Renewals  
 

Our contracts for janitorial services at several of our buildings and public restrooms are set to expire 
on April 30. I am writing to request council approval to renew each contract with the current 
independent contractors. This would be the seventh year for each contract.   
 
Mary Halstead is responsible for janitorial services at City Hall, the exterior restrooms at City Hall, 
the Rec Park and Grant Park restrooms, and the Market House restrooms. After three years without 
increasing the cost of her services, she is proposing increases for the proposed contract. The 
increases are based on her experiences in recent years and to keep pace with the increase of the 
minimum wage.   
 
Jeremy White is responsible for Turner Hall and the Public Works Building janitorial needs. He is not 
proposing any changes to the cost of his services.  A summary of the current and proposed contract 
costs is presented in Table 1.    

 

 Table 1.  Janitorial Contract Amounts 
 

 
I would characterize the service from both Mary Halstead and Jeremy White as very thorough, 
dependable, and responsive.  Both have offered to continue with the same scope of services for the 
same fees.   
 
Please let me know if you would like to view the contacts.  They are unchanged from last year 
except for the dates of service and costs as noted above. I recommend renewing the contracts with 
Mary Halstead and Jeremy White, DBA White Construction, Inc., through April 30, 2021.    

Facility  Contractor  Current  
Monthly Cost

Proposed  
Monthly Cost

City Hall  Mary Halstead $580 $650

City Hall Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead $540 $605

Rec Park North Public Restroom  Mary Halstead $510 $575

Rec Park South Public Restroom   Mary Halstead $510 $575

Grant Park Public Restroom  Mary Halstead $510 $575

Market House Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead $517 $580

Turner Hall Building  Jeremy White $350 $350

Public Works Building  Jeremy White $110 $110

 

Page 12 of 39



Ordinance No. ______________ 
 
  AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 120 “MOTORIZED VEHICLES FOR HIRE” OF THE 
  CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA
  ___________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5/11‐42‐6 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11‐42‐6) provides that 
the corporate authorities of each municipality may license, tax, and regulate hackmen, 
draymen, omnibus drivers, carters, cabmen, porters, expressmen, and all others pursuing like 
occupations and may prescribe their compensation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council heretofore has enacted Galena Code of Ordinances Chapter 120 to 
regulate vehicles for hire and the drivers of such vehicles within the City for the protection of 
the public health, safety, and welfare; and 
 
WHEREAS, recent innovations in technology now allow persons seeking for hire transportation 
to use wireless networks or the internet to find the location of a potential driver, obtain 
information about the driver, and arrange for transportation with that driver for an agreed 
price; and 
 
WHEREAS, transportation network companies (“TNCs”) have captured a growing share of the 
traditional vehicle for hire market by using digital networks or software application services to 
connect passengers to affiliated drivers; and 
 
WHEREAS, TNCs have been successful and popular with the public throughout the nation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council welcomes and encourages new businesses that offer pioneering 
solutions to the transportation needs of the City’s population; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a need exists to regulate the activities of TNCs and their 
drivers within the City, as provided herein, to protect the health, safety, and welfare of TNC 
drivers, riders, and the general public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council strongly supports the area’s existing vehicle for hire businesses and 
intends in this Ordinance to establish regulations that are fair and appropriate for all 
transportation providers regulated by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the best interests of the City are served by requiring all 
persons operating TNCs in the City to provide safe, clean, reliable, and consistent 
transportation services to the riding public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the City may regulate such activities pursuant to the 
Transportation Network Providers Act, 625 ILCS 57/1 et seq., which Act took effect on June 
1, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Act 99‐56, adopted by the 99th Illinois General Assembly, amended the 
Transportation Network Providers Act, inter alia, to prevent a unit of local government from 

Page 13 of 39



regulating TNCs, TNC drivers, or TNC services in a manner that is less restrictive than the 
regulation by the State under such Act, effective on July 16, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council further finds that the best interests of the City are served by 
establishing fees for TNC driver’s license of fees, pursuant to Galena Code of Ordinances 
Chapter, as provided herein. 
 
 
  NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo 
Daviess County, Illinois, as follows: 
 

SECTION I:  Pursuant to the authority found in the Illinois Compiled Statutes, 
Transportation Network Providers Act, 625 ILCS 57/1 et seq, Chapter 120, “Motorized 
Vehicles for Hire,” is amended by adopting and adding Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made part hereof, to the Galena Code of Ordinances. 

 
SECTION II: The license fee for the Transportation Network Company (TNC) 

annual license shall be $500. This fee may be modified from time to time by the City 
Council.  

 
SECTION III:  Chapter 120.01, “Definitions” shall be changed to “Definitions for 

Taxicabs”. 
 
SECTION IV:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 

of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION V:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
passage. 
 

SECTION VI:  Passed on this ________ day of _________________, A.D., 2020, in 
open Council. 
 
 
             AYES:                                NAYS: 
 
 

________________________________ 
Terry Renner, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
__________________________ 
  Mary Beth Hyde, City Clerk 

 

Page 14 of 39



Exhibit A 
 

CHAPTER 120 – MOTORIZED VEHICLES FOR HIRE 
 
§ 120.09  DEFINITIONS FOR TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES.   
 
For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 
clearly indicates or requires a different meaning. 
 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR TNC.  A licensed entity operating in the 
City of Galena pursuant to state and city requirements that uses a digital network or 
software application service to connect passengers to transport services provided by the 
TNC. A TNC is not deemed to own, control, operate, or manage the vehicles used by TNC 
drivers and is not a taxicab association or for‐hire vehicle owner. 
 
TRANSPORT NETWORK COMPANY DRIVER OR TNC DRIVER.  An individual who owns, 
leases, or is otherwise authorized to use a motor vehicle for TNC services. The motor 
vehicle shall not be a taxicab or for‐hire public passenger vehicle. 
 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY SERVICES OR TNC SERVICES. The 
transportation of a passenger between points chosen by the passenger and prearranged 
with a TNC driver through the use of a digital network or software application provided 
by the TNC. TNC services shall begin when a TNC driver accepts a transportation request 
received through the TNC's digital network or software application. Services continue 
through the transportation of the passenger and end when the passenger has 
completely exited the TNC driver's vehicle. This service is not a taxicab, for‐hire vehicle, 
or street‐hail service. 
 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY VEHICLE, TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 
VEHICLE, OR TNC VEHICLE.  Any motor vehicle used in the performance of TNC services. 
 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY AGENT, TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 
AGENT, OR TNC AGENT. Any person who represents the TNC in financial matters and 
operates a place of business on behalf of the TNC in the City. An agent is not required to 
be a driver. 
 
§ 120.10 TRANSPORT NETWORK PROVIDER LICENSE. 
 
(A) No person shall engage in a transportation network provider business in the city 
without a transportation network provider license issued pursuant to this section. 
 
(B) In order to qualify for a transportation network company license, whether upon 
initial application or upon application for renewal of a license: 
 

(1) An applicant shall be in compliance with all applicable city, State of Illinois 
and federal laws. 
 

Page 15 of 39



(2) An applicant shall have a place of business where the city may send, and the 
licensee shall accept, notices of hearing or other notices from the city and the licensee 
maintains its business and financial records relating to its license. 
 
(C) The TNC operating within the city shall submit an application to the City Clerk with 
an application fee as established by the City Council. The application shall include the 
following information: 

 
(1) If the license applicant is an individual: 

 
(a) The individual's full name, social security number, residence address, 

business, business e‐mail address and business telephone number. 
 
(b) Proof that the applicant is at least 19 years of age. 

 
(2) If the license applicant is a corporation: 

 
(a) The corporate name, business address and telephone number of the 

applicant. 
 
(b) The date and state of incorporation. 

 
(c) The full names, titles, residence addresses, e‐mail addresses and 

telephone numbers of its corporate officers, and of its authorized agent. 
 

(d) Proof that all corporate officers are at least 19 years of age. 
 

(e) Proof that the corporation is in good standing under the laws of the 
State of Illinois and the City of Galena. 

 
(3) If the license applicant is a partnership or limited liability company: 

 
(a) The name, business address or principal office address and telephone 

number of the applicant, 
 

(b) The full names, residence addresses, e‐mail addresses and telephone 
numbers of:  

1. the three members who own the highest percentage interests 
in such partnership or limited liability company.  

2. the general partner of a partnership.  
3. the managing member of a limited liability company.  
4. the applicant's authorized agent.  
5. any other member who owns a 25 percent or more interest 

therein. 
 

(c) The full name, addresses, e‐mail address and telephone number of a 
person authorized to receive notices issued pursuant to this section. 

Page 16 of 39



 
(d) Proof that all persons, partners, managers, managing members and 

members, as applicable, are at least 19 years of age. 
 
(D) In addition to the license application requirements listed in subsection (A), and in 
addition to any other information that the City Clerk may reasonably require in 
connection with the issuance or renewal of a license, any transportation network 
company licensee shall provide to the City Clerk within five business days upon written 
request the following information: 
 

(1) The full name, driver's license number and address of drivers registered with 
the applicant. 
 

(2) The license plate number, registered owner and the vehicle identification 
numbers of the transportation network vehicles registered with the applicant with a 
document attesting that each such vehicle meets the inspection and vehicle standard 
requirements provided in this chapter. 

 
(3) List of wheelchair‐accessible transportation network vehicles registered with 

the applicant. 
 

(4) The applicant's insurance policies as provided in Chapter 120.11. 
 

§ 120.11 INSURANCE. 
 
(A) TNCs and participating drivers shall comply with the automobile liability insurance 
requirements of this section as required and any other applicable insurance 
requirements mandated by federal, State of Illinois, and city laws. 
 
(B) The following automobile liability insurance requirements shall apply at all times a 
TNC driver is logged on to the TNC's digital network or software application without an 
active transport request that the TNC driver has accepted through the digital network or 
software application. The following insurance requirements shall resume upon the 
completion of the request and the passenger's complete exit from the TNC driver's 
vehicle or the electronic processing of the transaction, whichever is later: 
 
             (1) Automobile liability insurance shall be in the amount of at least $50,000.00 
for death and personal injury per person, $100,000.00 for death and personal injury per 
incident, and $25,000.00 for property damage. 

 
(2) Contingent automobile liability insurance in the amounts required in 

paragraph (1) of this subsection (B) shall be maintained by a transportation network 
company and provide coverage in the event that a TNC driver's own automobile liability 
policy excludes coverage according to its policy terms or does not provide at least the 
limits of coverage required in paragraph (1) of this subsection (B). 
 
(C) The following automobile liability insurance requirements shall apply the moment a 

Page 17 of 39



TNC driver accepts a transportation request through the TNC's digital network or 
software application until the transportation is complete and the passenger has 
completely exited the vehicle, or the electronic transaction has been processed, 
whichever is later: 
 

(1) Automobile liability insurance shall be primary and in the amount of 
$1,000,000.00 for death, personal injury, and property damage. The requirements for 
this paragraph (1) may be satisfied by any of the following: 
 

(a) Automobile liability insurance maintained by a TNC driver. 
 

(b) Automobile liability company insurance maintained by the TNC, or 
 

(c) Any combination of subparagraphs (a) and (b). 
 
              (2) Insurance coverage provided under this subsection (C) shall also provide for 
uninsured motorist coverage and underinsured motorist coverage in the amount of 
$50,000.00 from the moment a passenger enters a TNC driver's vehicle until the 
passenger completely exits the vehicle. 
 
               (3) The insurer, in the case of insurance coverage provided under this 
subsection (C), shall have the duty to defend and indemnify the insured. 
 
               (4) Coverage under an automobile liability insurance policy required under this 
subsection (C) shall not be dependent on a personal automobile insurance policy first 
denying a claim nor shall a personal automobile insurance policy be required to first 
deny a claim. 
 
(D) In every instance when automobile liability insurance maintained by a participating 
TNC driver to fulfill the insurance obligations of this section has lapsed or ceased to 
exist, the TNC shall provide the coverage required by the section beginning with the first 
dollar of a claim. 
 
(E) This section shall not limit the liability of a transportation network company arising 
out of an automobile accident involving a participating TNC driver in any action for 
damages against a TNC for an amount above the required insurance coverage. 
 
(F) The TNC shall disclose in writing to participating TNC drivers, as part of its agreement 
with those drivers, the following: 
 
                (1) The insurance coverage and limits of liability that the TNC provides while 
the TNC driver uses a vehicle in connection with a TNC's digital network or software 
application depending upon its terms, and 
 
                (2) That the TNC driver's own insurance policy may not provide coverage while 
the TNC driver uses a vehicle in connection with a TNC digital network or software 
application depending upon its terms. 

Page 18 of 39



 
(G) An insurance policy required under this section may be placed with an admitted 
Illinois insurer, or with an authorized surplus line insurer under Section 445 of the Illinois 
Insurance Code; and is not subject to any restriction or limitation on the issuance of a 
policy contained in Section 445a of the Illinois Insurance Code. 
 
(H) Any insurance policy required by this section shall satisfy the financial responsibility 
requirement for a motor vehicle under Sections 7‐203 and 7‐601 of the Illinois Vehicle 
Code. 
 
(I) Any participating TNC driver shall provide to any authorized law enforcement officer, 
in addition to any applicable insurance, proof of the insurance policies required by this 
section in case of an accident involving a TNC driver while he is operating his vehicle as a 
part of the TNC. 
 
(J) Proof of insurance meeting the standards described in this section shall be provided 
by the license applicant to the finance director before any issuance of a license to 
operate a transportation network company. 
 
§ 120.12 DRIVER REQUIREMENTS. 
 
(A) Prior to permitting an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital network or 
software application, the TNC shall: 
 

(1) Require the individual to submit an application to the TNC, which includes 
information regarding his or her address, age, driver's license, driving history, motor 
vehicle registration, automobile liability insurance, and other information required by 
the TNC. 
 

(2) Conduct, or have a third part conduct, a local and national criminal history 
background check for each individual applicant that shall include the National Sex 
Offenders Registry database. 
 

(3) Obtain and review a driving history report for the applicant. 
 
(B) A TNC shall not permit an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital network or 
software application unless such person: 
 

(1) Is at least 19 years of age. 
 

(2) Submitted to a local and national criminal history background check for each 
individual applicant shall include: 
 

(a) Multi‐state or multi‐jurisdictional criminal records locator or other 
similar commercial nationwide database with validation (primary source search). 

 
(b) National Sex Offenders Registry database. 

Page 19 of 39



 
(c) Obtain and review a driving history research report for the individual. 

 
(3) Has a valid and properly classified driver's license issued by the secretary of 

state. A restricted driver's permit issued following the suspension or revocation of a 
driver's license shall not be considered a valid and properly classified driver's license for 
the purposes of this subsection (B). 
 

(4) Had a valid driver's license for at least one year prior to the date of 
application. 
 

(5) Has not been convicted of, or placed on supervision by a court for more than 
three offenses against the traffic regulations governing the movement of vehicles within 
two years of the date of application. 
 

(6) Does not have more than three moving violations in the prior three‐year 
period. 
 

(7) Has not been convicted of or placed on supervision for reckless driving, 
driving under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs, drag racing, fleeing or 
attempting to elude a police officer, leaving the scene or failure to report an accident 
involving death or injury within seven years of the date of application. 
 
              (8) Has not been convicted at any time of fraud, sexual offenses, use of a motor 
vehicle to commit a felony, a crime involving property damage, and/or theft, acts of 
violence, or acts of terror. 
 
              (9) Has not had more than three moving violations in the prior three‐year 
period, or one major violation in the prior three‐year period (including, but not limited 
to, attempting to evade the police, reckless driving, or driving on a suspended or 
revoked license). 
 
             (10) Is not required to register as a sex offender, pursuant to 730 ILCS 5/150/3 
and has never been adjudicated as a sexually dangerous person. 
 
             (11) Possesses proof of registration for the motor vehicle used to provide TNC 
services. 
 
             (12) Possesses proof of automobile liability insurance for the motor vehicle used 
to provide TNC services. 
 
             (13) Has not had a taxicab driver's license or access to a TNC or taxi corporation's 
platform revoked for cause within three years of the date of application. 
 
             (14) Has not knowingly furnished false or misleading information or withheld 
relevant information on such application or caused or permitted another to furnish or 
withhold such information on his/her behalf. 

Page 20 of 39



 
(C) A picture of the TNC driver, the driver's license plate number, and a description of 
the motor vehicle, including wheel‐chair accessibility, used for TNC services shall be 
displayed on the digital network or software application for viewing by a passenger. 
 
(D) A TNC vehicle operated by a driver affiliated with a TNC licensed by another 
jurisdiction may come into the city to discharge passengers whose trip originated 
outside the city. 
 
(E) A TNC driver shall not be restricted to participating in services from a single TNC. A 
TNC driver shall be allowed to provide services for multiple TNCs. 
 
(F) A TNC driver shall not provide TNC services for more than 12 hours on any calendar 
day and must take a minimum uninterrupted break of six hours for every 12 hours the 
driver is active to provided services, whether or not the driver actually drove for 12 
hours during the active service period. 
 
§ 120.13 TRANSPORT NETWORK COMPANY VEHICLE INSPECTIONS AND 
REQUIREMENTS. 
 
(A) The TNC shall require that any motor vehicle that a TNC driver will use to provide 
TNC services meets vehicle safety and emissions requirements for a private motor 
vehicle in this State and this city. 
 
(B) A TNC driver shall identify his or her TNC vehicle at all times while offering TNC 
services with the City through display of consistent and distinctive trade dress (i.e., 
distinctive signage, emblem or display on the vehicle) visible from both the front and 
the back of the vehicle. The trade dress must be sufficiently large, and color contrasted 
as to be readable during daylight hours at a distance of fifty (50) feet or more from both 
in front of and in back of the vehicle. The trade dress shall be sufficient to allow a 
passenger, government official or a member of the public to associate a vehicle with a 
particular TNC. Acceptable forms of trade dress include, but are not limited to, symbols 
or signs on vehicle windows, doors, roofs, trunks or grills. Magnetic or removal trade 
dress is acceptable.  
 
(C) A TNC and its driver shall be jointly and severally liable for any violation of this 
section. 
 
§ 120.14 PACKAGE DELIVERY PROHIBITED.  
 
TNC drivers shall not accept packages for transportation unless such package is 
accompanied at all times by a passenger. 
 
§ 120.15 NON‐DISCRIMINATION.  
 
(A) The TNC shall adopt and notify TNC drivers of a policy of non‐discrimination on the 
basis of destination, race, color, national origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, 

Page 21 of 39



disability, age, sexual orientation, or gender identity with respect to passengers and 
potential passengers. 
 
(B) TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws regarding non‐discrimination 
against passengers or potential passengers on the basis of destination, race, color, 
national origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation, or 
gender identity. 
 
(C) TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws relating to accommodation of 
service animals. 
 
(D) A TNC shall not impose additional charges for providing services that accommodate 
any disability. 
 
(E) A TNC shall allow passengers to specify any necessary disability accommodations 
through the TNC's digital network or software application. If a TNC has no reasonable 
way to accommodate such a disability, the TNC shall not be responsible to do so. 
 
§ 120.16 SAFETY. 
 
(A) The TNC shall implement a zero‐tolerance policy on the use of alcohol and 
perception altering or performance impairing drugs while a TNC driver is providing TNC 
services or any time the TNC driver is logged into the TNC's digital network. 
 
(B) The TNC shall provide notice of the zero‐tolerance policy on its website as well as 
procedures to report a complaint about a driver with whom a passenger was matched 
and whom the passenger reasonably suspects was under the influence of alcohol or 
perception altering or performance impairing drugs during the course of the trip. 
 
(C) Upon receipt of a passenger's complaint alleging a violation of the zero‐tolerance 
policy, the TNC shall immediately suspend the TNC driver's access to the TNC's digital 
platform, and shall conduct an investigation into the reported incident. The suspension 
shall last the duration of the investigation. 
 
(D) The TNC shall maintain records relevant to the enforcement of this requirement for 
a period of at least two years from the date that a passenger complaint is received by 
the TNC. 
 
(E) TNCs or TNC drivers are not common carriers, contract carriers or motor carriers, as 
defined by any applicable State or city laws, nor do they provide taxicab or for‐hire 
vehicle service. 
 
§ 120.17 OPERATIONAL. 
 
(A) A TNC may charge a fare for the services provided to passengers provided that, if a 
fare is charged, the TNC shall disclose to passengers the fare and its calculation method 
through its digital network or software application for the purposes of passenger 

Page 22 of 39



calculation. 
 
(B) Within a reasonable time following the completion of a trip, a TNC shall transmit an 
electronic receipt to the passenger that lists: 
 

(1) The origin and destination of the trip. 
 
(2) The total time and distance of the trip. 
 
(3) An itemization of the total fare paid, if any. 
 

(C) Dispatches for TNC services shall be made only to eligible TNC drivers under the 
requirements of this article. 
 
§ 120.18 SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION. 
 
A TNC driver may be suspended or revoked by the finance director or his/her designee 
if: 
 
(A) The driver has violated any of the provisions of this article regulating TNC. 
 
(B) The driver no longer meets the requirements of Chapter 120.12. 
 
(C) The driver has engaged in any conduct which would constitute a criminal offense 
against any passenger while the licensee is acting as a TNC driver. 
 
(D) The driver has knowingly furnished false or misleading information or withheld 
relevant information on any application for any license or permit required by this 
division or knowingly caused or suffered another to furnish or withhold such 
information on his behalf. 
 
(E) The driver has had his driver's license suspended or revoked by the secretary of 
state. A restricted driver's permit issued following the suspension or revocation of a 
driver's license shall not be considered a valid driver's license for the purposes of this 
subsection. 
 
(F) The driver has, while acting as a TNC driver, failed to maintain a reasonable level of 
personal hygiene, appearance and conduct. Violation of this paragraph includes, but is 
not limited to: wearing torn, dirty or stained clothing, failure to be clean and well 
groomed, free of offensive body odors; rude, insulting or profane speech or actions 
toward or in the presence of a member of the public. 
 
§ 120.19 EXPIRATION. 
 
All licenses or access to platforms authorized under this chapter shall expire one year 
after issuance. 
 

Page 23 of 39



§ 120.20 APPEALS. 
  
Within ten days after written notice of the revocation, suspension, or denial of issuance 
of a TNC provider’s or driver’s license, an applicant or license holder may file with the 
City Clerk a written notice of appeal to the City Council from such revocation, 
suspension, or denial. The City Council must provide the applicant or license holder with 
notice and an opportunity to be heard on the issue of whether the license was properly 
revoked, suspended, or denied. 

Page 24 of 39



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, P.O. Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  February 18, 2020 

RE: Cal. No. 20A-01, Applicant: City of Galena, 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036.  Request 
for Text Amendment to Zoning Code of Ordinances to amend §154.015 Definitions, Adult-
Use Cannabis Business Establishment, to establish a 1500 feet separation requirement. 

 
Summary: 
 
Last Fall, the City approved Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishments as a land use allowed by 
Special Use Permit only in select districts.  The Ordinance was constructed primarily, from a model 
provided by the Illinois Municipal League (IML), to address allowable districts as well as proximity 
requirements for sensitive areas such as schools, daycares, etc. 
 
Concurrently, the State Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act provided additional detailed regulations for all 
types of Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishments; most relevant to this amendment, the Act includes 
a 1,500 feet separation requirement between businesses, except where co-location of business types is 
allowed.  The adopted Ordinance by the City does not include the 1,500 feet separation requirement 
because it was part of the State Act requirements. 
 
Subsequently, while working through scenarios and requests by competing dispensing organizations, City 
Staff consulted with IML, the State and other planning law attorneys to ensure the City was protected to 
only allow one dispensing organization in the downtown area.  During those discussions, Staff learned 
that the State may possibly remove the 1,500 feet separation requirement in the future, which would leave 
the City open for more than one dispensary in the downtown area.   
 
Thus, the purpose for this amendment is to memorialize the 1,500 feet separation requirement for 
business establishments, excepting those that can be co-located by Act and Ordinance.  This will ensure 
the City will only have one adult-use dispensary in the downtown per the Council’s intent. 
 
At their meeting on February 12th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this request. 
 
I will be available for any questions. 
 
Approval Criteria & Recommendation for Text Amendment: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed amendments to 
the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

 

Page 25 of 39



2 of 2 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall be 
considered: 

               (1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;   

               (2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 
transitions, etc.;  

               (3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 
safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 
impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise 
pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;   

               (4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and 
requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;   

               (5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone;  

               (6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.   

The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and the City 
Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or expedient, 
additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change provided that this 
additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the owners of 
20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line therefrom or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed to be altered as to such 
regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such amendment shall not be passed 
except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the selected members of the City Council. 

 

Page 26 of 39



Cal. No. 20A-01 1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 20A-01 
 
APPLICATION BY:  City of Galena, 101 Green Street, Galena, IL 61036 
 
FOR: Request for Text Amendment to Zoning Code of Ordinances 

to amend §154.015 Definitions, Adult-Use Cannabis 
Business Establishment, to establish a 1500 feet separation 
requirement. 

 
PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this 
matter on February 12, 2020.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in 
a quarter-page sized ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to 
the hearing.  They were invited to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present 
at the hearing in which the subject application and materials were reviewed and all persons were 
heard who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
Last Fall, the City approved Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishments as a land use allowed 
by Special Use Permit only in select districts.  The Ordinance was constructed primarily, from a 
model provided by the Illinois Municipal League (IML), to address allowable districts as well as 
proximity requirements for sensitive areas such as schools, daycares, etc. 
 
Concurrently, the State Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act provided additional detailed 
regulations for all types of Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishments; most relevant to this 
amendment, the Act includes a 1,500 feet separation requirement between businesses, except 
where co-location of business types is allowed.  The adopted Ordinance by the City does not 
include the 1,500 feet separation requirement because it was part of the State Act requirements. 
 
Subsequently, while working through scenarios and requests by competing dispensing 
organizations, City Staff consulted with IML, the State and other planning law attorneys to 
ensure the City was protected to only allow one dispensing organization in the downtown area.  
During those discussions, Staff learned that the State may possibly remove the 1,500 feet 
separation requirement in the future, which would leave the City open for more than one 
dispensary in the downtown area.   
 

Page 27 of 39



Cal. No. 20A-01 2 
 

Thus, the purpose for this amendment is to memorialize the 1,500 feet separation requirement for 
business establishments, excepting those that can be co-located by Act and Ordinance.  This will 
ensure the City will only have one adult-use dispensary in the downtown per the Council’s 
intent. 
 
At their meeting on February 12th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this 
request. 
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
Testimony presented in favor of the request: 
 
§ Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator, presented for the city.  Last fall the city council 

directed the zoning board to craft an ordinance allowing adult use cannabis businesses in 
certain districts.  The city can regulate time, manner, place and number of these businesses.  
In that process, the city omitted a separation requirement because one existed at the state 
level as part of the State Cannabis Act.  The council always intended to have only one 
dispensary in the downtown district.  The State’s 1,500-feet separation rule means the first 
one to get a State license would be the only one allowed downtown.  With the application for 
a second downtown dispensary we learned thru the municipal league and the State that it is 
possible that in the future the 1500-foot separation requirement could be removed.  In order 
to eliminate that possibility, and maintain the Council’s intent of having only one downtown 
operation, we are initiating this text amendment to include a 1500-feet separation 
requirement in the definition section of Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment.  This 
also gives us a lesser density should other requests come in for the Industrial Park area.  This 
requirement would be exempt for a co-location.             

 
Baranski asked if this was already happening.   

 
Oldenburg said it is not, but the separation requirement was not included in our ordinance, so 
we wanted to protect our original intent in case the State made a change.   

 
Cook asked for clarification on co-locations.   

 
Oldenburg said if a business wants to operate dispensary and transportation businesses out of 
the same building through our ordinance and the State Act, they can.  In some cases, multiple 
operations can be in one building which is more practical, but they would have to apply for 
separate licenses through the State.     

 
Testimony presented in opposition to the request 

 
No one spoke in opposition to the request. 
 
 
 
 

Page 28 of 39



Cal. No. 20A-01 3 
 

APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 0, Section §154.015 Definitions sets forth the definitions of various terms used 

throughout the Zoning Code of Ordinances.  Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment 
definitions are included in this section. 

§ Article 9, Section §154.919 sets forth the Non-Administrative Development Review Common 
Elements of Procedures. 

§ Article 9, Section §154.920 sets forth the procedures for Zoning Code Amendment and 
Rezoning. 

 
DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the 
request by the City of Galena for a text amendment as described above should be approved for the 
following reasons: 

(1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of 
adoption;  N/A 

(2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due 
to installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.; This is applicable as it could cause a change of character with a 
dense establishment of multiple operations. 

(3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and 
defining characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts 
on the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking 
problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm 
water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  This 
is compatible with defining characteristics of the proposed, affected districts. 

(4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the 
implementation of the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and 
the policies, intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;  
This amendment is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

(5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made 
available concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; There are 
adequate public facilities and services available. 

(6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or  N/A. 

(7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will 
be benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  There is a need to 
protect the character of the Council’s intent for an allowance of these establishments. 

Page 29 of 39



Cal. No. 20A-01 4 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to 
the City Council of the City of Galena that this request by the City of Galena for a Text Amendment 
as described above should be approved as proposed. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of February, A.D. 2020, by the Galena Zoning Board 
of Appeals by a vote of 7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 
 

Page 30 of 39



Cal. No. 20A-01 1 

Ordinance #O - 2__ - __ __ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 0, SECTION §154.015 – DEFINITIONS OF THE  
ZONING CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

_____________________________________________________________________   
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Galena, Jo Daviess County, Illinois as follows: 
 
 
SECTION I:  Section §154.015 – Definitions of the City of Galena Zoning Code, is hereby amended as follows  
 
§ (Additions are shown as underlined) 
 
Section §154.015 - Definitions 
 
Adult-Use Cannabis Business Establishment: 
An adult-use cannabis cultivation center, craft grower, processing organization, infuser organization, dispensing 
organization or transporting organization.  Except where co-location is allowed, all adult-use cannabis business 
establishments shall not be allowed within 1,500 feet of other adult-use or medical cannabis business establishments. 
 
SECTION II: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION III:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect within ten (10) days of its passage and legal publication in 
pamphlet form. 
 
 
 
SECTION IX:  Passed on the __th day of________________, A.D., 202__, in open Council. 
 
 AYES:      NAYS:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
 
____________________________________                  _________________________________  
TERRY RENNER, MAYOR    MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK  

Page 31 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783)
837541 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE AGREEM 02/05/2020 94.49 52.43.549.00

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783): 94.49

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
021520 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 02/15/2020 52.80 01.41.552.00
021520 2 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 02/15/2020 253.07 01.21.552.00
021520 3 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 02/15/2020 363.97 01.13.552.00
021520 4 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 02/15/2020 48.82 20.25.515.00
021520 5 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 02/15/2020 50.01 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 768.67

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
021520 1 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 02/15/2020 11.58 01.21.552.00
021520 2 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  02/15/2020 51.87 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 63.45

BERNING, DENNIS (120790)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 15.50 01.11.549.02

Total BERNING, DENNIS (120790): 15.50

BLAIN'S FARM & FLEET (120547)
4313 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT TIRES 02/12/2020 59.98 01.41.652.01
8690 1 Invoice DOG FOOD/HEKTOR 02/13/2020 31.99 01.21.814.06

Total BLAIN'S FARM & FLEET (120547): 91.97

BURNS, GAYLE (883)
111819 2 Adjustmen CR BALANCE REFUND 11/18/2019 5.67- 98.115.0

Total BURNS, GAYLE (883): 5.67-

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
021520 1 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 02/15/2020 22.30 01.16.684.00
021520 2 Invoice RENTLY 02/15/2020 60.00 58.54.532.00
021520 3 Invoice BACKUP SERVICES 02/15/2020 279.00 01.13.512.04
021520 4 Invoice ADOBE/BUILDING 02/15/2020 15.93 01.13.512.04
021520 5 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2020 85.33 01.13.651.02
021520 6 Invoice IIMC CONFERENCE 02/15/2020 685.00 01.14.563.00
021520 7 Invoice TOLLS 02/15/2020 25.40 01.16.562.00
021520 8 Invoice LABOR LAW POSTER 02/15/2020 24.33 01.21.651.00
021520 9 Invoice TASER BATTERIES/CART 02/15/2020 916.00 01.21.652.02
021520 10 Invoice JUNIOR POLICE BADGES 02/15/2020 374.53 01.21.652.03
021520 11 Invoice LABOR LAW POSTER 02/15/2020 24.33 01.41.652.00
021520 12 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 02/15/2020 55.09 58.54.654.01
021520 13 Invoice LABOR LAW POSTER 02/15/2020 24.33 59.55.651.00

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 2,591.57

Page 32 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
119887 1 Invoice CHIPS 01/31/2020 1,223.52 15.41.614.01

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 1,223.52

COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335)
589782 1 Invoice SALT 02/04/2020 1,927.52 01.41.614.07
595295 1 Invoice SALT 02/12/2020 3,731.24 01.41.614.07

Total COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA (120335): 5,658.76

CURTIS BLUE LINE (120523)
359910 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/DEVIN 02/06/2020 253.64 01.21.471.15

Total CURTIS BLUE LINE (120523): 253.64

DMASWA (120782)
02-00858681 1 Invoice GLASS RECYCLING 01/31/2020 88.20 13.44.929.00

Total DMASWA (120782): 88.20

ELIZABETH COMMUNITY AMBULANCE (120780)
021020 1 Invoice EMR TRAINING 02/10/2020 150.00 01.21.563.00

Total ELIZABETH COMMUNITY AMBULANCE (120780): 150.00

EUCLID MANAGERS (120626)
021920 1 Invoice EMPLOYEE DENTAL #564 02/19/2020 1,811.66 01.13.451.01

Total EUCLID MANAGERS (120626): 1,811.66

FINNIN FORD (119255)
020120 1 Invoice NEW TRUCK 02/01/2020 4,297.00 01.41.840.01

Total FINNIN FORD (119255): 4,297.00

FOLEY, DEVON (120792)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 15.50 01.11.549.02

Total FOLEY, DEVON (120792): 15.50

FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917)
11998 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 06/11/2019 272.50 17.52.514.00
11999 1 Invoice TIRES 06/01/2019 151.82 01.41.652.01
13036 1 Invoice TIRES 11/13/2019 411.06 01.41.652.01
13504 1 Invoice TIRES/UTILITY TRAILER 01/30/2020 455.20 01.41.652.01

Total FOLEY'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE, INC. (119917): 1,290.58

FUNSTON, JEREMY (120794)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 31.00 01.11.549.02

Total FUNSTON, JEREMY (120794): 31.00

Page 33 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

FUNSTON, JOE (120785)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 77.50 01.11.549.02

Total FUNSTON, JOE (120785): 77.50

GALENA ARC (850)
021120 1 Invoice HAHN COUNCIL SALARY  02/11/2020 50.00 01.11.432.00

Total GALENA ARC (850): 50.00

GALENA BRIDAL FAIR (120329)
021420 1 Invoice BRIDAL FAIR SPONSORS 02/14/2020 500.00 58.54.553.00

Total GALENA BRIDAL FAIR (120329): 500.00

GALENA CHRYSLER (82)
75295 1 Invoice SQUAD 1 MAINTENANCE 02/05/2020 101.01 01.21.513.06

Total GALENA CHRYSLER (82): 101.01

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
013120 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 3.20 01.41.514.08
013120 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 11.32 01.41.613.05
013120 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 165.15 01.41.652.00
013120 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 67.43 01.41.653.00
013120 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 243.82 17.52.652.00
013120 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 81.83 22.22.611.00
013120 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 12.37 22.22.613.00
013120 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 01/31/2020 10.40 58.54.511.00

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 595.52

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
106247 1 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 02/06/2020 100.00 51.42.532.00
106247 2 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 02/06/2020 100.00 52.43.532.00

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 200.00

GRANT COUNTY TRUCK BODIES LLC (120686)
64195 1 Invoice NEW TRUCK 02/06/2020 18,000.00 01.41.840.01

Total GRANT COUNTY TRUCK BODIES LLC (120686): 18,000.00

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
021520 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 02/15/2020 290.00 01.13.511.07
021520 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  02/15/2020 270.00 01.13.511.08
021520 3 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 02/15/2020 258.50 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 818.50

HARRIS, MIKE & SONJA (119612)
021920 1 Invoice CANCELLATION/REFUND 02/19/2020 200.00 58.54.929.00

Page 34 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total HARRIS, MIKE & SONJA (119612): 200.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
021520 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  02/15/2020 7,679.67 01.218.0
021520 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  02/15/2020 132.42 01.218.0
021520 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 02/15/2020 31,248.34 01.13.451.00
021520 4 Invoice COBRA INSURANCE 02/15/2020 1,504.97 01.13.451.04

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 40,565.40

HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99)
47429 1 Invoice BLDG. MAINTENANCE 02/04/2020 70.00 22.22.611.00
47440 1 Invoice HEATER/ADMIN BUILDIN 02/05/2020 6,700.00 52.43.929.00

Total HOLLAND HEATING, AIR COND (99): 6,770.00

HONGSERMEIER, BRENT (119181)
112319 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 11/23/2019 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total HONGSERMEIER, BRENT (119181): 200.00

HOUY, GERALD (120784)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 77.50 01.11.549.02

Total HOUY, GERALD (120784): 77.50

ILCMA (354)
2096 1 Invoice WORKSHOP 02/10/2020 50.00 01.11.563.00

Total ILCMA (354): 50.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
021520 1 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 02/15/2020 1,003.60 15.41.572.00
021520 2 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 02/15/2020 398.58 01.13.571.01
021520 3 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 02/15/2020 393.39 01.41.571.01
021520 4 Invoice EMS/ELECTRIC 02/15/2020 85.79 12.10.571.01
021520 5 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 02/15/2020 190.53 17.52.571.01
021520 6 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 02/15/2020 101.45 22.22.576.01
021520 7 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 02/15/2020 196.37 59.55.571.01

I0003098 1 Invoice REMOVE POLE 02/06/2020 656.24 01.41.614.05

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 3,025.95

JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121)
020320 1 Invoice VACATION RENTAL INSP 02/03/2020 50.00 01.16.546.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY HEALTH DEPT (121): 50.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
021520 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 02/15/2020 13.56 17.52.514.00
021520 2 Invoice SUPPLIES 02/15/2020 2.94 17.52.652.00
021520 3 Invoice CLOTHING 02/15/2020 125.96 01.41.579.02

Page 35 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 142.46

LALLY, KATHERINE (120779)
021820 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE AS 02/18/2020 208.68 01.21.540.01

Total LALLY, KATHERINE (120779): 208.68

LANGE, CASEY (120789)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 15.50 01.11.549.02

Total LANGE, CASEY (120789): 15.50

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307377873 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 02/11/2020 265.63 20.25.652.02

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 265.63

LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943)
36666 1 Invoice 2014 1-TON 01/23/2020 341.92 01.41.613.01

Total LEIBOLD AUTO CENTER OF GALENA (943): 341.92

LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376)
1343164-202 1 Invoice INVESTIGATION PROGR 01/31/2020 40.00 01.21.652.03

Total LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS (376): 40.00

LITHO SPECIALISTS (63)
IS30396 1 Invoice PRINTING W2'S 02/05/2020 214.76 01.14.554.00
IS30402 1 Invoice PRINTING 1099'S 02/05/2020 141.99 01.14.554.00

Total LITHO SPECIALISTS (63): 356.75

MACHOLL, JEREMY (120793)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 15.50 01.11.549.02

Total MACHOLL, JEREMY (120793): 15.50

MILLER, JONATHAN (120143)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 46.50 01.11.549.02

Total MILLER, JONATHAN (120143): 46.50

MILLER, SAM (120786)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 15.50 01.11.549.02

Total MILLER, SAM (120786): 15.50

MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877)
14845 1 Invoice CLEANING DITCHES 11/13/2019 500.00 52.43.929.00

Total MNS CONSTRUCTION, INC. (118877): 500.00

Page 36 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

MORAN, MARK (922)
020720 1 Invoice TRAVEL REIMBURSEME 02/07/2020 34.15 01.11.562.00

Total MORAN, MARK (922): 34.15

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
4767920200 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR STA 02/01/2020 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

PINK PRAIRIE GARDENS (120781)
092319 1 Invoice HANGING FLOWERS 02/19/2020 500.00 01.11.929.01

Total PINK PRAIRIE GARDENS (120781): 500.00

RICHTER, THOMAS (120778)
021820 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE AS 02/18/2020 208.68 01.21.540.01

Total RICHTER, THOMAS (120778): 208.68

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048)
20-002-106 1 Invoice ELECTRODES (2 SETS) 02/14/2020 79.90 01.21.652.04

Total SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048): 79.90

STANGL, STEVEN (120787)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 77.50 01.11.549.02

Total STANGL, STEVEN (120787): 77.50

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
013120 1 Invoice FUEL 01/31/2020 568.24 01.41.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 568.24

T & T ELECTRONICS (120055)
68795 1 Invoice TV RECYCLING 01/03/2020 175.00 13.44.540.05

Total T & T ELECTRONICS (120055): 175.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730)
020220 1 Invoice POSTAGE 02/02/2020 500.00 01.13.551.00

TOTALFUNDS BY HASLER (119730): 500.00

TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060)
9052 1 Invoice ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  02/03/2020 234.82 01.21.511.00
9060 1 Invoice GENERATOR MAINTENA 02/03/2020 266.63 01.41.614.05

Total TRENKAMP ELECTRIC (120060): 501.45

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
8321 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY RENTAL 02/13/2020 495.00 17.52.579.01

Page 37 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 495.00

TROTTER, MATT (120788)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 31.00 01.11.549.02

Total TROTTER, MATT (120788): 31.00

US POSTAL SERVICE (1076)
022020 1 Invoice PERMIT 82 ACCOUNT PO 02/20/2020 240.00 13.44.551.00

Total US POSTAL SERVICE (1076): 240.00

US WATER (120719)
SI02386 1 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 02/01/2020 28,956.74 51.42.515.00
SI02386 2 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 02/01/2020 28,956.74 52.43.515.01

Total US WATER (120719): 57,913.48

VAN VICKLE, BRIAN (120777)
021820 1 Invoice HALLOWEEN PARADE AS 02/18/2020 626.04 01.21.540.01

Total VAN VICKLE, BRIAN (120777): 626.04

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
020120 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  02/01/2020 38.01 01.21.652.03
020120 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/VERI 02/01/2020 76.02 22.22.652.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 114.03

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
021520 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2020 82.25 01.21.651.00
021520 2 Invoice TRICKLE CHARGE FOR S 02/15/2020 49.87 01.21.655.00
021520 3 Invoice CLOTHING 02/15/2020 47.62 01.41.579.02
021520 4 Invoice SUPPLIES 02/15/2020 38.60 01.41.652.00
021520 5 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 02/15/2020 47.81 01.21.651.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 266.15

WASMUND, TODD (120791)
021920 1 Invoice PERMIT REIMBURSEMEN 02/19/2020 46.50 01.11.549.02

Total WASMUND, TODD (120791): 46.50

WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40)
D085362 1 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 02/03/2020 374.45 01.21.654.00

Total WEBER PAPER COMPANY (40): 374.45

WEX BANK (119104)
021520 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS-GAS 02/15/2020 2,667.57 01.41.655.00
021520 2 Invoice PARKS-GAS 02/15/2020 293.99 17.52.655.03
021520 3 Invoice POLICE-GAS 02/15/2020 1,249.57 01.21.655.00
021520 4 Invoice FIRE-GAS 02/15/2020 31.40 22.22.655.00

Page 38 of 39



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     8
Input Dates: 2/14/2020 - 2/29/2020 Feb 20, 2020  10:28AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total WEX BANK (119104): 4,242.53

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
021520 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 02/15/2020 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WORKSHOP, THE (120647)
46902 1 Invoice FINANCE/RUG SERVICE 01/31/2020 8.80 01.13.654.00
46902 2 Invoice FIRE/RUG SERVICE 01/31/2020 137.50 22.22.538.01
46902 3 Invoice POLICE/RUG SERVICE 01/31/2020 33.00 01.21.651.00
46902 4 Invoice TURNER HALL/RUG SER 01/31/2020 29.70 58.54.654.01
46987 1 Invoice SR. VAN TRANSP. 01/31/2020 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total WORKSHOP, THE (120647): 1,042.00

Grand Totals: 160,065.76

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 6501956
Vendor number hash - split: 9863280
Total number of invoices: 76
Total number of transactions: 126

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 160,065.76 160,065.76

Grand Totals: 160,065.76 160,065.76

Page 39 of 39


	00.00 Agenda 02.24.20
	01.0068 New Manager Liquor Casey's
	01.0069 Minutes cc021020
	02.0070 Stair Challenge
	03.0071 Janitorial Contracts
	04.0038 Ride Sharing Ordinance
	05.0073 Cannabis Report and FOF
	Cannabis Report
	Cannabis FOP

	06.0074 Cannabis Ordinance
	07.0075 Warrants 02.24.20



